
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
1 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, May 6, 2014.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a notice 2 
posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  City Engineer Jarrod Holter, Mayor Joe 5 
Chilsen, Ald. Jim Bialecki, Ald. Jack Pogreba, Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred 6 
Buehler 7 
 8 
Also Present:  Land Use and Development Director Brea Grace 9 
 10 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 11 
 12 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve the minutes from the previous 13 
meeting as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 14 
 15 
On voice vote, motion carried. 16 
 17 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 18 
 19 
Ald. Pogreba called for anyone wishing to provide public input. 20 
 21 
Bob Muth, Second District Alderperson 22 
317 Spruce Street 23 
Onalaska 24 
 25 
“The reason I wanted to speak with you is Item 15 on your agenda, [which is] information about 26 
the speed sign.  I am newly elected to the Second District for the [Common] Council, and as an 27 
Alderperson I have been contacted by a number of citizens already complaining about the speed 28 
and the problems there going on on [State Trunk] Highway 35 or 2nd Avenue North.  Also, I 29 
received a letter from Mr. and Mrs. Lee Strozinsky from 17th [Avenue] North who had 30 
complaints about speeders along there.  I had a meeting with Jarrod and he let me know that 31 
construction is going to take place on East Main, so I think that’s going to slow things down.  32 
But one of the main issues that I ran for the Common Council was because of the problems that 33 
we’re having on 2nd Avenue North, north of Main Street.  What’s going on is we’re now having a 34 
little drag strip going on from Main Street up to where the two lanes merge.  In fact, this morning 35 
I was southbound and I stopped at a red light where I watched a black Monte Carlo and a white 36 
Ford line up for a drag race up to the first intersection to see who could be there first.  That 37 
included spinning tires and burning out and everything else to try to beat each other.  A week ago 38 
I was in the right lane and a semi was in the left lane.  We were both at the red light and I 39 
thought the semi would take awhile to go up the hill.  He must have been empty because he 40 
decided to race with me to cut me off, so I slowed down to let him in.  I think the way the state 41 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
2 

has put that together is a real hazard.  I spoke to Steve Smith, who lives right at John Street and 42 
Highway 35.  We’ve been talking for quite awhile.  I know I talked to a former Alderperson, 43 
Diane Wulf, about the same problems.  I’ve had a meeting with [Police] Chief [Jeff] Trotnic, and 44 
he has showed that the Onalaska Police Department is covering that area a great deal of time.  45 
But they sure have a lot of other area to be other places; they can’t sit there all the time.  I saw 46 
this item on the agenda, and I am really delighted to see it.  I would really encourage us to do 47 
whatever we can to get a sign up there.  Speaking with Jarrod, I would rather see the one that 48 
actually shows the speed of the vehicle rather than just having a flashing light to show that it’s a 49 
25 [mph] zone.  I think if [motorists] see their speed and know that it says 25 [mph] you’re going 50 
to get much better results than just showing what the speed sign is.  But I know we have a 51 
problem coming southbound also. Speaking with Mr. Smith, I was in his front yard … I was a 52 
cop for 41 years.  When I say a car came in at 50 to 60 miles an hour in a 25 [mph] zone, he was 53 
going 50 to 60 miles an hour.  That was what Mr. Smith pointed out; he said [motorists] are 54 
flying coming down through there.  I know our officers can’t sit there all the time; I understand 55 
that.  But we have to do something to make people aware that they’ve got to slow down and use 56 
some common sense out there.  Thank you.” 57 
 58 
Jarrod noted there is a resident present this evening who wishes to address Item 6 and said he 59 
believes the resident should speak when the board addresses this item. 60 
 61 
Ald. Pogreba agreed to Jarrod’s request. 62 
 63 
Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone else wishing to provide public input and closed that 64 
portion of the meeting. 65 
 66 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 67 
 68 
Item 4 – Election of: 69 
 70 

A. Chair 71 
 72 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Bialecki, to nominate and re-elect Ald. Jack Pogreba 73 
as Chair of the Board of Public Works. 74 
 75 
On voice vote, motion carried, 4-0, with one abstention [Ald. Pogreba]. 76 
 77 

B. Vice-Chair 78 
 79 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Pogreba, to nominate and elect Ald. Jim Bialecki as 80 
Vice-Chair of the Board of Public Works. 81 
 82 
On voice vote, motion carried, 4-0, with one abstention [Ald. Bialecki]. 83 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
3 

 84 
Item 5 – Delivery and possible acceptance of updated Pralle Center Drive extension traffic 85 
study 86 
 87 
Jarrod noted board members’ packets included the updated Pralle Center Drive extension traffic 88 
study, which had been prepared by Short Elliott Hendrickson after several alternatives had been 89 
created.  Adjacent landowners had requested that further study take place.  Jarrod said this item 90 
is solely for acceptance this evening and no action will be taken.  Jarrod said staff has been 91 
discussing the report with the adjacent landowners and stated, “We are requesting that we’ll have 92 
additional meetings and discussions with the adjacent landowners and interested parties in the 93 
actions within the report and obtaining comments on this report and incorporating them into a 94 
future decision on what will be happening in that area.” 95 
 96 
Jarrod referenced page 2 of the report, which explores possible scenarios with what would 97 
happen with the proposed Alternative No. 1.  Jarrod referenced page 3 of the report, which 98 
includes an analysis of the Farm & Fleet property if it were to be redeveloped.  Jarrod referenced 99 
pages 4 through 7 of the report, which details four alternatives that possibly could occur in the 100 
area. 101 
 102 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Bialecki, to accept the updated Pralle Center Drive extension 103 
traffic study and place it on file. 104 
 105 
Ald. Bialecki said he has examined the report and it appears to him that Alternative No. 1 seems 106 
to be appropriate. 107 
 108 
On voice vote, motion carried. 109 
 110 
Item 6 – Review and consideration of water and sanitary sewer charges for 2210 Franklin 111 
Street 112 
 113 
Jarrod noted that Brady Harding, the owner of the house located at 2210 Franklin Street, is in 114 
attendance this evening, and also noted that board members’ packets include a copy of the utility 115 
bill that went out for the Harding residence at 2210 Franklin Street.  Jarrod stated, “You can see 116 
that, based upon the usage at this residence, his utility bill came to $3,339.27.  Our meters read 117 
up to 10,000 cubic feet, and the bill that was sent out was for 99,690.  So what that means is 118 
basically the meter actually read backwards for part of the reading cycle.” 119 
 120 
Jarrod referenced a handout detailing the meter readings for 2210 Franklin Street and noted that 121 
the January 2014 reading was for negative-780 cubic feet.  The February 2014 and March 2014 122 
readings were 230 and 240 cubic feet, respectively.  Jarrod said Brady has requested an alteration 123 
to his bill and noted staff has been in contact with the Public Service Commission in an attempt 124 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
4 

to determine what the proper procedure should be for Brady’s bill.  Jarrod noted that staff had 125 
tested the meter and said he cannot provide an adequate explanation as to what had happened.  126 
Jarrod said that while the PSC has promised to render a regulatory decision, he has yet to receive 127 
it. 128 
 129 
Ald. Pogreba said, “My opinion is, I think it’s pretty evident that there is a situation here that no 130 
resident should be going through $3,000 worth of water in one billing cycle, and that there have 131 
been problems with the meter.  Did we change the meter out?” 132 
 133 
Jarrod said, “By Public Service Commission standards, we’re supposed to test the meter and then 134 
put it back in – that’s what they want us to do.”  Jarrod noted that the meter had been changed 135 
out on May 1.  The meter that was installed was the IPRO meter, which calculates the flow going 136 
through it by utilizing electronics. 137 
 138 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said the PSC typically is very prompt in 139 
returning decisions and stated, “In my opinion, it’s hard to make a decision until we hear from 140 
them because I don’t want to do something and then have it be in noncompliance with what they 141 
would say.  Even with what Ald. Pogreba has stated, I would agree – it’s hard to say that 142 
someone used $3,000 worth of water.  We can either forward it to Council with no action based 143 
upon waiting for the report and I can press them to get the report by next Tuesday and have it as 144 
an action item on the Council meeting.  Or we can wait until the next Board of Public Works 145 
meeting [on June 3].” 146 
 147 
Ald. Bialecki stated he wants to forward this item to the May 13 Common Council meeting for 148 
action, with the assumption that the PSC will return its report.  Ald. Bialecki said it is possible 149 
this item may not be addressed until the June 3 Board of Public Works meeting if the PSC report 150 
has not been returned. 151 
 152 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said Brady is not expected to pay the bill for 153 
$3,339.27 in the interim. 154 
 155 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to forward to the Common Council with no 156 
action the consideration of water and sanitary sewer charges for 2210 Franklin Street. 157 
 158 
Ald. Pogreba said this item will be tabled until the June 3 Board of Public Works meeting if the 159 
PSC does not submit its report by the May 13 Common Council meeting. 160 
 161 
Jarrod offered Brady the opportunity to address the board. 162 
 163 
 164 
 165 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
5 

Brady Harding 166 
2210 Franklin Street 167 
Onalaska 168 
 169 
Brady referenced the meter readings report and said, “If you look back at the 13th of November, 170 
it [reading] is at 2,800.  In December it goes to 3,980.  I think that 3 should still be a 2 because 171 
then that would correspond with the cubic feet that I have been using.  That’s one thing.  Another 172 
thing is when it showed the first negative, why wasn’t it brought to my attention then and 173 
something done then with it rather than having another negative and then this final negative 174 
where it says I used almost 750,000 gallons of water in a month’s time?” 175 
 176 
Ald. Pogreba explained that city staff takes a reading every month.  However, this reading is not 177 
calculated out for the bill cycle, but rather once a quarter.  The three months are then calculated. 178 
 179 
Jarrod said staff runs reports from the monthly readings and attempts to catch malfunctioning 180 
batteries.  Jarrod said staff also looks for residents who utilize a significant amount of water.  181 
Jarrod said, “Until this point, we never looked for someone going negative because we never had 182 
a negative.  I do apologize for that, but it’s something we can hopefully be able to run now and 183 
we can catch it.” 184 
 185 
Jarrod reiterated that staff looks for residents who utilize a significant amount of water because 186 
typically staff will discover the source of the elevated reading is due to a leaking toilet or outside 187 
faucet. 188 
 189 
Ald. Bialecki noted that Brady’s meter readings also were skewed during the first quarter of 190 
2013 and asked him if his water bill was significant during this time. 191 
 192 
Brady said no and noted all his bills have been consistent, ranging from $93 to $140. 193 
 194 
Fred said he wants to place dollar amounts next to the meter reading figures because the PSC 195 
allows municipalities to go back two years for any bill adjustment. 196 
 197 
On voice vote, motion carried. 198 
 199 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of Emerald Ash Borer Plan with presentation by 200 
Bluestem Forestry Consulting, Inc. 201 
 202 
Jarrod noted that Kelli Tuttle from Bluestem Forestry Consulting, Inc. had performed an update 203 
to the city’s Emerald Ash Borer plan from 2008.  Jarrod said the plan has been a collaborative 204 
effort between himself, Brea, and Parks and Recreation Director Dan Wick.  Jarrod noted that 205 
this report is solely on the city-owned trees (public boulevards, parks, and open spaces). 206 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
6 

 207 
Kelli said her presentation will include points included in the report included in board members’ 208 
packets.  Kelli referenced page 3 of the report, which includes the executive summary, and 209 
shared the following statistics: 210 
 211 

• The City of Onalaska has 1,821 ash trees in its public areas. 212 
• The average diameter of a tree is 8 inches. 213 

 214 
Kelli reported there was a confirmed EAB find on December 6, 2013 and referenced the “Ash 215 
Mortality Chart” located on page 5 of the report.  Kelli estimated the City of Onalaska is between 216 
years 7 and 8 and predicted there will be several dead ash trees in the city during 2014.  Kelli 217 
said the city must take action regarding EAB for the following reasons: 218 
 219 

• Public safety, as the ash trees will die unless they are treated by chemicals. 220 
• Failing to act quickly almost doubles the length of cleanup and removal time as ash wood 221 

quickly becomes brittle. 222 
• Trees that receive treatment must be fairly healthy.  Chemicals are relatively ineffective 223 

on trees that are more than 25 percent dead. 224 
 225 
Ald. Bialecki referenced the 2014 Capital Improvements Budget meeting from the fall of 2013 226 
and the $494,400 cost to remove ash trees.  Ald. Bialecki stated the city attempts to stay within 227 
$2.5 to $3 million each year on the bond market and told both Jarrod and Brea to examine 228 
possibly straddling the removal costs over two bond issues over two years. 229 
 230 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to move the potential cost of treating ash 231 
trees to the Capital Improvements Budget with the understanding it may be necessary to bond for 232 
this over two years. 233 
 234 
Jarrod asked the board to allow Kelli to continue her presentation and stated, “These are the 235 
decisions that need to be made right now, in my opinion.  The number one decision is, are we 236 
going to remove all the ash?  That’s the first decision.  Are we going to wait for them to die, or 237 
are we going to remove them preemptively?  The second decision is, in the report it goes through 238 
and says we should save 172 ash trees that are greater than or equal to 14 inches in diameter by 239 
treatment.  It’s got a cost associated back in here, and that cost is every two years because we’ve 240 
got to treat it every two years.  And do we have a staff member that’s going to be the one treating 241 
them, or do we hire that treatment?  That’s an ongoing cost.  We’ve already had people call and 242 
say, ‘We’ve treated our ash tree in the boulevard for the last four years because we heard this is 243 
coming and we’ve hired somebody to treat it.’  They never told us, but they treated it.  So do we 244 
have a policy that we’re going to take down all the trees?  Or do we say that if you’re willing to 245 
treat your tree and bear those costs, we won’t take it down.  We’ll put it on the list with our GIS 246 
system and we’ll keep track of it and we won’t touch that tree.  We won’t take it down, but you 247 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
7 

have to have done every year and pay for that.  And if something happens that it does die and it 248 
becomes a safety hazard, we’ll have to take it down.  The fourth thing that would be a major 249 
Capital Improvements item is replanting the trees, which is what you were going back to with the 250 
Capital Improvements Budget.” 251 
 252 
Jarrod referenced page 13 of the report, which includes the budget Kelli had created for 2015, 253 
and noted that Option No. 2 would cost approximately $200,000 if a five-person city crew 254 
removed ash trees over a nine-week period, a contractor grinded the stumps, the trees were 255 
replanted and treated chemically.  Jarrod said, “I’m looking for direction on not just putting it in 256 
the Capital Improvement Budget and waiting another six months until we start talking about it.  257 
We need direction on what we’re going to start doing today.  Do we start removing trees with 258 
Street Department staff?  Do we start looking at contracting it out?  We could wait until Capital 259 
Improvements time, come September and October and do nothing.  But unfortunately we haven’t 260 
been very proactive in this area.  We’ve had the report that we had from 2008 that we knew that 261 
there was a problem going on and this invasive species was in our area.  It was my opinion at 262 
that time that we should wait until we specifically saw that it was here and that we were going to 263 
have problems in case something changed.  Now I think we’re to the point where it’s here and 264 
we know it’s here.  We’re going to start losing trees, and where do we go from here?” 265 
 266 
Ald. Bialecki said, “Those are good points.  I would proceed with removing this, in a worst-case 267 
scenario, in the fall.  You’re going to have to plan that.  We don’t have a half-million dollars 268 
now.  However, if you feel you have some staff time you could dedicate to begin this process 269 
now this year I would hope we would do that.  In addition, between now and the time of 270 
removal, if there are people who have contacted you and indicated they’ve already treated their 271 
trees, you’ll list those too to offset what we have to do.  But verify that.  In addition to that, to 272 
treat 172 trees, if you could bring that forward at the next Board of Public Works meeting and 273 
somehow we’ll find a way to get that process going.” 274 
 275 
In response to a question by Fred, Kelli said the goal is to save 172 ash trees. 276 
 277 
Fred said it is his understanding that treating trees is a long-term process. 278 
 279 
Jarrod noted Kelli’s report includes information pertaining to the value of a tree. 280 
 281 
Ald. Pogreba noted there is a motion and second on the floor and asked if they should be pulled 282 
so more information may be shared. 283 
 284 
Ald. Bialecki said he wishes to let his motion stand. 285 
 286 
Ald. Pogreba said he believes the discussion is drifting away from the intent of the motion and 287 
stated he also believes Jarrod is seeking assistance from the board in helping him decide whether 288 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
8 

172 trees will be saved or cut down. 289 
 290 
Jarrod said, “If I was going to go off of the direction I’ve heard tonight is the fact that we are 291 
going to remove the trees as we get time with city staff.  We are going to bring back to the Board 292 
of Public Works the possibility of treating 172 trees as laid out in the report.  We are going to 293 
take any cost for replanting to the next Capital Improvements cycle, and/or any more costs for 294 
stump removal or anything else that we outlined in the report – forestry consulting services, all 295 
those things – would come back to the next Capital Improvements cycle.  If I am hearing this 296 
correctly, that would be the direction I have been given.” 297 
 298 
Fred said he wishes to hold up the motion on the floor and allow Kelli to continue with her 299 
presentation because it is possible the board’s thoughts might change or the motion might be 300 
amended. 301 
 302 
Ald. Bialecki said adjustments can be made as more information is made available. 303 
 304 
Mayor Chilsen stated he believes the motion on the floor may be suspended until Kelli completes 305 
her presentation. 306 
 307 
Ald. Pogreba said Mayor Chilsen is correct. 308 
 309 
Motion and second called back. 310 
 311 
Kelli said the 172 ash trees being recommended for preservation are the city’s largest trees (14 312 
inches or larger) that are in the best condition.  A majority of the trees are in the city’s parks.  313 
Kelli noted two public meetings were held and it appeared to her that the public favored saving 314 
some of the larger trees.  Kelli referenced Jarrod’s second point and said, “To remove these trees 315 
over the course of three years, it’s going to take basically 100 days – actually, more than that.  A 316 
five-person crew is going to take 55 days to remove trees per year.  That’s 55 days of something 317 
they’re not doing, so I really can’t stress that enough.  Some grass is not getting mowed.  There 318 
are services that are not going to be completed, and the trees are going to die.  I think by this fall 319 
you’ll start seeing a lot of diebacks.  It’s not an issue I feel we can push off for another couple 320 
years.  This action needs to happen at least next year. 321 
 322 
As far as replanting, it’s an expensive proposition.  I think you’ll get a lot of calls about it.  If you 323 
remove somewhere in the neighborhood of 1,800 trees and you don’t plan on replanting them, 324 
I’d expect your phone to be ringing.  Just based on other communities I’ve worked with, I don’t 325 
think you’ll need to replace all 1,800, but I think the public will want to see a lot of trees 326 
replaced.” 327 
 328 
Kelli also noted the 1,800 trees represent 25 percent of all the city’s public trees. 329 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
9 

 330 
Fred asked if there are enough trees to fill the public’s demand. 331 
 332 
Jarrod noted that trees could be purchased at discounted prices in 2010 and 2011due to low 333 
demand.  Jarrod said this is the reason why nurseries did not plant new stock and noted there 334 
now is a high-priced market due to the fact there is a higher demand. 335 
 336 
Kelli said nurseries stopped planting trees because so few were being purchased.  In addition, 337 
nursery owners plowed under ash trees.  Kelli said there are cities that will contract years ahead 338 
of time.  These trees are then held for the city at a lower price.  Kelli predicted there will be more 339 
shortages by 2016 or 2017. 340 
 341 
In response to a question by Fred, Kelli said she assumes the City of Onalaska purchases most of 342 
its stock from the Twin Cities. 343 
 344 
Brea noted staff is working on a policy with homeowners who are treating boulevard trees. 345 
 346 
Jarrod said the city’s ordinances will need to be updated within the next six months and said staff 347 
might solicit advice from Kelli. 348 
 349 
Kelli noted that these recommendations already have been made. 350 
 351 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to authorize City Engineer Jarrod Holter and 352 
Land Use and Development Director Brea Grace to move the potential cost of $478,000 to treat 353 
ash trees to the Capital Improvements Budget with the understanding it may be necessary to 354 
bond for this over two years.  If there are ash trees worth saving, they may be treated and/or 355 
replaced.   356 
 357 
Fred said it will be important to start booking replacement trees if this project will be undertaken 358 
in 2015. 359 
 360 
Ald. Bialecki stressed that any trees that are purchased cannot come from outside the United 361 
States. 362 
 363 
On voice vote, motion carried. 364 
 365 
Item 8 – Review and consideration of Railroad Crossing Quiet Zone Report including 366 
application for quiet zone at 2nd Avenue Southwest 367 
 368 
Jarrod referenced a presentation made at a previous Board of Public Works meeting by Short 369 
Elliott Hendrickson’s Dave McKenzie and noted he had attached pages from that report in board 370 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
10 

members’ packets.  Jarrod said various options had been explored for a quiet zone at 2nd Avenue 371 
Southwest.  However, Jarrod also said many of the options to be guaranteed the quiet zone were 372 
expensive; specifically, in the $400,000 range.  Jarrod said the city may apply for alternative 373 
safety measures, and that the paperwork may be submitted to the Federal Railroad 374 
Administration for a fee of approximately $2,500.  Jarrod said the city is not guaranteed to obtain 375 
the quiet zone, but added, “If we can get that passed we could probably put the quiet zone in for 376 
[approximately] $50,000, which I think would be within our budgetary power through the 377 
Capital Improvements Budget and would be worthwhile.” 378 
 379 
Jarrod said he asking the board for approval to apply for the alternative safety measure. 380 
 381 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to apply for a railroad quiet zone alternative 382 
safety measure for the 2nd Avenue Southwest intersection.  The necessary paperwork will cost 383 
approximately $2,500 for Short Elliott Hendrickson to prepare. 384 
 385 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said that if this is accepted it will cost approximately an 386 
additional $6,000 to put together engineering plans so the project may be bid out.  Jarrod said the 387 
city could wait until the funds are bonded for, adding he assumes the approval would be valid for 388 
more than one year. 389 
 390 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said the railroad crossing at Irvin Street would 391 
include the supplemental safety measures.  Jarrod added the city likely would obtain a quiet zone 392 
at Irvin Street if supplemental safety measures eventually are installed. 393 
 394 
On voice vote, motion carried. 395 
 396 
Item 9 – Review and consideration of 2014 paving project bid 397 
 398 
Jarrod noted a bid tabulation for the 2014 paving project had been included in board members’ 399 
packets.  Mathy Construction was the lone bidder with a bid of $610,900.50.  Jarrod noted there 400 
was approximately $645,000 in the Capital Improvements Budget. 401 
 402 
Motion by Jarrod, second Ald. Bialecki, to award Mathy Construction to 2014 paving project bid 403 
with a bid of $610,900.50. 404 
 405 
On voice vote, motion carried. 406 
 407 
Item 10 – Review and consideration of downtown parking regulations 408 
 409 
Jarrod referenced handouts included in board members’ packets and noted downtown parking 410 
restrictions, per city ordinance, differ from the existing signage.  Jarrod said the signage is being 411 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
11 

altered and referenced a map located in the center of the Common Council Chambers.  Jarrod 412 
noted there are a variety of two-hour parking regulations between 2nd Avenue and 4th Avenue on 413 
Main Street, and also the first approximately 150 feet south on 3rd Avenue.  The regulations 414 
range from one-hour parking and two-hour parking.  Some signs state there is no two-hour 415 
parking except on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Some signs state that two-hour parking is 416 
limited, but not limited on Sundays and holidays.  Jarrod said staff is recommending altering the 417 
signs and allowing two-hour parking at all times. 418 
 419 
Jarrod said, “In our downtown the two-hour parking is typically … The way it is signed right 420 
now it’s only good during business hours, and we have very few normal, day-to-day, 9-to-5 421 
businesses in the downtown.  Most of the businesses are all retail and service-oriented.  The 422 
parking is at a premium at pretty much all times.” 423 
 424 
Jarrod noted the ordinance states that there is no parking, stopping or standing on the west side of 425 
3rd Avenue from King Street to Main Street.  However, there is no signage that states this.  Jarrod 426 
expressed his desire to repeal this.  Jarrod said there is signage for the first 75 feet between Del’s 427 
two driveways.  The signage would remain there, but the city would not install signage for the 428 
rest of the block. 429 
 430 
Jarrod said, “The ordinances are all good except for those two things, and the two decisions that 431 
we need assistance with are what to do with the two-hour parking downtown; if we want to keep 432 
the two-hour parking, what stipulations [there should be] with the two-hour parking; and then 433 
taking off the ordinance the one section with no parking.” 434 
 435 
Ald. Bialecki told Jarrod he would like to support his recommendation, but he also inquired 436 
about snowplowing. 437 
 438 
Jarrod noted there is an ordinance in place that prohibits parking from 2 a.m. until 6 a.m. and 439 
said individuals could not park for two hours between 2 a.m. and 6 a.m. 440 
 441 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said it will be the board’s decision as to 442 
whether a public hearing will be held.  Jarrod noted the city typically holds a public hearing 443 
when it is altering parking regulations. 444 
 445 
Ald. Bialecki asked if any homeowners or business owners are aware of the potential parking 446 
changes. 447 
 448 
Mayor Chilsen said conversations have taken place with a number of business owners.  449 
However, Mayor Chilsen also stated he believes a public hearing should be held. 450 
 451 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said he believes the other parking restrictions are 452 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
12 

adequate and stated, “We studied the whole area all the way from 8th Avenue down to 2nd 453 
Avenue.  The parking restrictions around City Hall and [Irving Pertzsch Elementary] appear to 454 
be working and functioning.  There is no one coming forward to say that we need a change.  As 455 
you know, 2nd Avenue has no parking all the time on it.  Unless we make a change where we’re 456 
going to add parking back, we really can’t the way the new construction was done up there.” 457 
 458 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said a public hearing notice would be sent to any 459 
abutting property owners along Main Street and 3rd Avenue. 460 
 461 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said there will be no parking changes along 5th 462 
Avenue South. 463 
 464 
Ald. Pogreba said he has been contacted by residents along 5th Avenue South who have asked 465 
questions and experienced difficulties with parking in this area during school hours. 466 
 467 
Ald. Bialecki noted that kindergarten classes will be returning to Irving Pertzsch Elementary 468 
within a couple of years and asked if this will create more parking challenges. 469 
 470 
Jarrod said the biggest change at Irving Pertzsch Elementary will be a larger gymnasium.  Jarrod 471 
said he believes this will lead into increased activity on nights and weekends. 472 
 473 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said there will be three to four classrooms at 474 
Irving Pertzsch, and perhaps another eight to 10 employees. 475 
 476 
Fred asked, “The question I’m going to go back to is, isn’t the ordinance stating that except on 477 
Sunday?  So that ordinance revision is really affecting all of them?” 478 
 479 
Jarrod said no, noting the ordinance currently states two-hour parking, except Saturdays, 480 
Sundays and holidays, and it is only valid anywhere from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. during the day.  Jarrod 481 
noted parking is from 8:30 a.m. until 5 p.m. on some blocks, while it is 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. on other 482 
blocks.  Jarrod stated, “There is no consistency throughout the whole ordinance, which is one 483 
thing we want to clean up.  Even if you wanted to say, ‘Let’s just keep it during the day two-hour 484 
parking,’ I’ve been asked consistently what hours do we want it so all the signage is consistent.” 485 
 486 
Fred asked, “If you’re removing something off the existing ordinance, the property owners, 487 
regardless of who they are, are being affected by the change?” 488 
 489 
Jarrod asked, “If you change the parking at, for instance, 4th Avenue and Main Street, would you 490 
state that someone living on 5th Avenue is affected by it?” 491 
 492 
Fred noted there is a two-hour limit regardless of which day it is. 493 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
13 

 494 
Jarrod said this is correct, but noted the two-hour parking that is being stated is the downtown 495 
area between 2nd Avenue and 4th Avenue. 496 
 497 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said there will be no changes for 5th Avenue, 498 
which is included in the school parking ordinance. 499 
 500 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Bialecki, to establish a public hearing for the June 3 Board of 501 
Public Works meeting regarding downtown parking regulations. 502 
 503 
Jarrod asked board members on which area they want to focus. 504 
 505 
Board members agreed that any area where parking will be changed should be included. 506 
 507 
On voice vote, motion carried. 508 
 509 
Jarrod promised to include colored maps with the public hearing notice. 510 
 511 
Item 11 – Review and consideration of parking restrictions along Eagle Bluff Court 512 
 513 
Jarrod noted that board members’ packets include Ordinance 10-1-27(e), which states there shall 514 
be no parking, standing or stopping on either side of Eagle Bluff Court from the north right-of-515 
way line of CTH OS north a distance of 300 feet.  Board members’ packets also include 516 
Ordinance 10-1-37(d)(1), which states there shall be no parking, stopping or standing on both 517 
sides of Theater Court from County Highway OS North to the end of Theater Court.  Jarrod said 518 
Eagle Bluff Elementary officials have requested extra on-street parking toward the school itself.  519 
Jarrod said staff recommends that 10-1-27(e) remain in place, and that the board pass on to the 520 
Administrative and Judiciary Committee that 10-1-37(d)(1) be rescinded from the ordinances. 521 
 522 
Motion by Fred, second by Mayor Chilsen, to rescind 10-1-37(d)(1) be rescinded from the City 523 
of Onalaska Code of Ordinances. 524 
 525 
Jarrod said the School District of Onalaska favors this action. 526 
 527 
On voice vote, motion carried. 528 
 529 
Item 12 – Review and consideration of Green Coulee Road and East Main Street 530 
intersection improvements 531 
 532 
Jarrod noted that in 1999 the City of Onalaska performed a traffic study at this intersection and 533 
said staff has examined various alternatives over the years.  Jarrod said there is increased 534 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
14 

development in Green Coulee and noted there is an average of nine trips a day per home.  Jarrod 535 
said the city explored installing a signal light at this intersection in 2005.  A preliminary was 536 
started and the concepts were made; however, it was not a feasible project. 537 
 538 
The recorded conversation ended at this point, to continue on Side B as follows. 539 
 540 
Jarrod said he has received calls from citizens and fielded questions from elected officials 541 
regarding what action will be taken at this intersection.  Jarrod said staff examined proposed 542 
designs at the intersection.  The Engineering Department utilized designs from other projects and 543 
attempted to lay out a concept drawing.  Jarrod noted board members’ packets include two 544 
concept drawings – one of a roundabout, and one of a signalized intersection.  Jarrod noted he 545 
had sent a letter to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation asking if it would examine this 546 
idea as the city would be redirecting the off-ramp from United States Highway 53 onto East 547 
Main Street.  Jarrod said staff would have to start over if WisDOT would not examine any 548 
proposals.  Jarrod said that while WisDOT is processing the letter he sent, he did speak with a 549 
representative via telephone.  Jarrod said WisDOT would be receptive to examining the 550 
proposal; however, WisDOT would not be able to assist in the financing of the project.  Jarrod 551 
said he had calculated a preliminary estimate of $4.2 million for the project.  Jarrod said neither 552 
the Coulee Golf Bowl nor Kwik Trip would be seriously affected by the project.  The project 553 
would consume the Coulee Golf Bowl maintenance shed and the land on which it sits.  Jarrod 554 
noted that the two parcels sit in the Town of Onalaska, and will complicate any intersection 555 
improvement as there would be more processing and possible approvals by other entities. 556 
 557 
Jarrod said, “Looking at the handouts you have tonight and the ones that are on the boards, it [the 558 
project] is doable.  I was surprised in looking at that.  The reasoning for the high cost is there is 559 
the Green Coulee drainage swale that goes through this area.  We had about $1 million worth of 560 
box culvert work and drainage work that needed to be done.  Either way, you’ve got $250,000 of 561 
either signals or roundabout work to be done.  You’ve got probably over $1 million worth of 562 
road improvements to be done because all that pavement needs to be torn out and redone.  Base 563 
work and lighting … there’s another item for lighting in our estimate.  We had a variety of items 564 
that once you look at this it drives up the cost.  Tonight I’m presenting my findings and letting 565 
the board know where we sit presently.  I’m looking to see if the board would like to give 566 
direction.  What I would envision with this is the Engineering Department has done its best job at 567 
trying to estimate a cost and estimate a proposed layout, but I’m by far not the roundabout 568 
designer.  We would need to have a professional give us anything further than what we have 569 
here. 570 
 571 
If we so chose to go down a path of looking at this in more depth, because we have no money 572 
budgeted it would have to be a competing project in our Capital Improvements Budget again.  I 573 
would say that it would be probably in the range of $25,000 to get down to a 30 percent 574 
engineering plan where you could do an actual cost estimate that is a lot better than mine and has 575 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
15 

a lot fewer ‘what-ifs.’  You would have something that would know your right-of-way impacts a 576 
lot better and what would be needed.  With that, if we are looking at $4.2 million to build this, as 577 
Alderman Bialecki has stated earlier tonight when we were discussing the Emerald Ash Borer 578 
plan, the city typically bonds $2.5 to $3 million a year.  So with that, do we take a whole Capital 579 
Improvements cycle and fix one intersection?  That’s the decision that would have to be made.” 580 
 581 
Ald. Bialecki said he believes this project should be kept “on the books” and stated he is curious 582 
to see what WisDOT’s response will be. 583 
 584 
Ald. Pogreba recalled attending a past public WisDOT meeting where he learned the traffic 585 
count coming out of Green Coulee was not significant enough at the time.  Ald. Pogreba said 586 
2015 was mentioned as a possible project date and asked if the city’s statistics are closer to 587 
WisDOT’s statistics for the Green Coulee Road/East Main Street intersection. 588 
 589 
Jarrod noted that the intersection currently does not meet warrants on left turns coming out of the 590 
valley.  Jarrod said, “Part of that reasoning is, from the residents when you talk to them, [they 591 
say], ‘We can’t make a left turn so we don’t do a left turn.  It’s not safe.’  The perceived danger 592 
is there, so they don’t do that movement.” 593 
 594 
Jarrod said that even if the intersection met warrants, a traffic signal could not function 595 
simultaneously with the other traffic signal in the vicinity.  Jarrod said, “Whatever the count is, if 596 
we do have the count you’re going to have to go to one of these options.  I think that’s what your 597 
ultimate end goal is.” 598 
 599 
Jarrod said WisDOT told him there is the possibility of safety money.  However, Jarrod also 600 
said, “It’s surprising we don’t have more accidents than what we’ve seen.  But with that, unless 601 
you have accident data you can’t say there are perceived accidents.  From monitoring the 602 
intersection for the last almost 15 years now, I don’t think that the traffic volume is increasing.  603 
But I think people are just opting to make a right turn.” 604 
 605 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod recommended waiting to see what WisDOT 606 
says and said, “I guess I would recommend if we wanted to keep this process of looking at the 607 
intersection moving forward, I would include within the Capital Improvements Budget a line 608 
item for Green Coulee Road intersection improvements.   And I’d make sure I had a cost that I 609 
would confirm to make sure it would be enough to get a plan that isn’t done and it isn’t approved 610 
and it isn’t biddable, but something where we could get a lot better cost.  Then you could take 611 
that to the following year’s Capital Improvements Budget.  There is no sense of spending every 612 
dollar in the Capital Improvements Budget.  If we spend $25,000 on studying this intersection, 613 
that’s half of a city block we could have repaved.  Those are all choices that need to be made.” 614 
 615 
Mayor Chilsen said he has received multiple calls regarding this intersection and stated, “I think 616 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
16 

we have to at least take a look at it and continue to try to find some kind of resolution to this 617 
problem.” 618 
 619 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Fred, to accept the conceptual drawings provided by City 620 
Engineer Jarrod Holter for Green Coulee Road and East Main Street intersection improvements 621 
and consider including it in the Capital Improvements Budget process with the hope that future 622 
changes will allow for City of Onalaska, Town of Onalaska, State of Wisconsin and private 623 
partnership on a project. 624 
 625 
On voice vote, motion carried. 626 
 627 
Item 13 – Review and consideration of building removal and associated costs at 111 Irvin 628 
Street 629 
 630 
Jarrod said that due to the Scenic Byways Grant no longer being active, it is now possible to 631 
remove the former Bait Shop building.  Jarrod said the city is required to both remove the 632 
structure and pay for it as part of a previous agreement from the State Trunk Highway 35 633 
reconstruction project.  Jarrod said he has included a proposed cost breakdown that includes 634 
disposal costs, renting a backhoe to demolish the Bait Shop, and determining how to deal with 635 
underground storage tanks on the site.  The cost estimate is $13,500, and funds are budgeted in 636 
both the 2010 and 2014 Capital Improvements Budgets for building removal and building 637 
purchase in that area. 638 
 639 
Motion by Ald. Pogreba, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the removal of the Bait Shop at 640 
111 Irvin Street by the City of Onalaska Street Department at a cost of $13,500. 641 
 642 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said the underground storage tank would have stored 643 
petroleum or another substance.  Jarrod noted that Short Elliott Hendrickson had performed the 644 
work at the Old City Shop and said he had received an estimate of $946 from SEH to be present 645 
when the tanks are excavated. 646 
 647 
Jarrod said, “The problem is we can’t do any earth moving without the archaeologists there.  We 648 
need the archaeologists there while we’re tearing down the building, which we’re already paying 649 
for, so we can turn the backhoe and dig out the top of the tank to know what the tank is so I can 650 
get a better price and a better understanding so I can come back to you then again and say, ‘This 651 
is what we need to do to get rid of the tank’ and then have the archaeologists back out there again 652 
while we’re removing the tank.  We’re probably going to have to hire a specialized underground 653 
tank removal contractor to remove that tank.  That’s what we’re thinking, but we don’t know that 654 
right now.” 655 
 656 
On voice vote, motion carried. 657 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
17 

 658 
Item 14 – Review and consideration of Professional Archaeological Services for building 659 
removal at 111 Irvin Street 660 
 661 
Jarrod said the Mississippi Valley Archaeology Center has submitted a bid not to exceed $5,948 662 
for this work.  Jarrod noted that MVAC came in significantly under budget during a project on 663 
Locust Street.  Jarrod also noted he had included in board members’ packets some of the 664 
documents that must be submitted. 665 
 666 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to have Mississippi Valley Archaeology Center 667 
perform the Professional Archaeological Services for the Bait Shop demolition at 111 Irvin 668 
Street at a cost not to exceed $5,948. 669 
 670 
On voice vote, motion carried. 671 
 672 
Item 15 – Review and consideration of purchasing flashing speed limit sign for 2nd Avenue 673 
and Poplar Street 674 
 675 
Jarrod referenced a copy of an email he had received from Assistant Police Chief Troy Miller 676 
and said staff has examined 2nd Avenue and Poplar Street.  The speed limit is 50 mph by the 677 
Kwik Trip near Troy Street.  It decreases to 40 mph by Sunny the Sunfish, and then decreases 678 
again to 25 mph by Poplar Street.  Jarrod acknowledged this is a difficult area to enforce the 679 
speed limit and said he is proposing to purchase either a flashing speed limit sign with white 680 
lights that would blink 24 hours a day, or a radar speed limit sign that contains a radar unit that 681 
would “shoot” a vehicle as it approaches the sign and flash the automobile’s speed if it was 682 
exceeding the speed limit.  Jarrod said the flashing speed limit sign would cost $1,600, the 12-683 
inch radar speed limit sign would cost $3,080, and the 17-inch radar speed limit sign would cost 684 
$4,020.  Jarrod said there are funds remaining in the Capital Improvements Budget from the 685 
enhancement project to pay for one of the items. 686 
 687 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said he believes the best option would be to 688 
utilize a sign that flashes the speed limit at motorists.  Jarrod also noted data collection would be 689 
included with the purchase of the flashing speed limit sign. 690 
 691 
Motion by Fred, second by Jarrod, to purchase a 17-inch radar speed limit sign at a cost of 692 
$4,020. 693 
 694 
On voice vote, motion carried. 695 
 696 
 697 
 698 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
18 

Item 16 – Review and consideration of single axle dump truck equipment bids 699 
 700 
Jarrod said the city has received the equipment package bids for the single axle dump truck.  701 
Jarrod said staff recommends selecting the base bid of $83,948 from Universal Truck 702 
Equipment, and also the Varitech Critical Spot Sprayer Anti-Ice System at a cost of $8,375.  703 
Jarrod said the city would be approximately $4,000 under the $160,000 that was budgeted for the 704 
truck and equipment in the Capital Improvements Budget.  The Varitech Critical Spot Sprayer 705 
Anti-Ice System is a skid-mounted unit that could be run in and out of trucks.  It would hold 500 706 
gallons of salt brine.  This system will ensure that snow does not bond to the pavement. 707 
 708 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the purchase of Item I and IIc for a single 709 
axle dump truck at a total cost of $92,323. 710 
 711 
Fred asked Jarrod to attempt to obtain a pre-discount payment. 712 
 713 
Jarrod said he anticipates the truck being delivered within the next 45 days.  From there it will go 714 
to the assembler for another 60 days before the city receives the truck on approximately 715 
November 1. 716 
 717 
On voice vote, motion carried. 718 
 719 
Item 17 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., Mathy 720 
Construction, St. Joseph’s Construction, Winona Mechanical, A-1 Excavating, Wapasha 721 
Construction, State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and any other 722 
contractor/developer  723 
 724 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 725 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 726 

 727 
May 6, 2014 728 

 729 
    Original 730 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 731 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 732 
 733 
1.  SEH INC. (01375) 734 
     STH 16 – Left Turn Lane 735 
     Design 736 
     Estimate #10  $   49,738.23   $ 13,557.26   $   51,717.92  $   5,245.02 737 
 738 
 739 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
19 

2.  SEH INC. (01375) 740 
     Railroad Quiet Zone Study 741 
     Estimate #9  $   14,200.00   $     -       $   12,533.82  $ 1,666.18 742 
 743 
3.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 744 
     Storm Lift 745 
     Electrical Troubleshooting 746 
     Estimate #5  $   -     $     -        $   2,309.68  $   99.86 747 
 748 
4.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 749 
     Theater Road Traffic Signal 750 
     Construction/Engineering 751 
     Estimate #3  $   8,500.00  $     -          $   4,517.46  $   390.81 752 
 753 
5.  MUNICIPAL WELL & PUMP 754 
     Well #7 & #8 Pump Repairs 755 
     Construction 756 
     Estimate #3  $   41,519.00  $     -          $   28,996.00  $   17,683.00 757 
 758 
6.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 759 
     Scada Upgrade 760 
     Design 761 
     Estimate #12  $   30,000.00  $     -          $   29,391.54  $   81.66 762 
 763 
7.  ST. JOSEPH EQUIPMENT 764 
     Theater Road Traffic Signal 765 
     Construction 766 
     Estimate #1  $   747,906.54     $     -      $   -   $   132,891.37 767 
 768 
8.  BLUE STEM FORESTRY CONSULTING 769 
     Emerald Ash Borer 770 
     Study 771 
     Estimate #1  $   3,700     $     -       $   -  $   4,400.00 772 
 773 
9.  SEH INC. (01375) 774 
     Pralle Center Drive Study Update 775 
     Study 776 
     Estimate #1  $   13,000.00     $     -      $   -   $   1,105.00 777 
 778 
 779 
 780 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014 
20 

10.  WAPASHA CONSTRUCTION 781 
     2013 Reservoir Improvements 782 
     Construction 783 
     Estimate #54  $   294,991.99     $     -       $   75,410.46 $   9,105.75 784 
 785 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to pay the 10 estimates as printed and on 786 
file. 787 
 788 
On voice vote, motion carried. 789 
 790 
Adjournment  791 
 792 
Motion by Ald. Pogreba, second by Ald. Bialecki, to adjourn at 7:52 p.m. 793 
 794 
On voice vote, motion carried. 795 
 796 
 797 
Recorded by: 798 
 799 
Kirk Bey 800 

Reviewed 5/9/14 
 


